QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS NO. 1

1)
What would be the duration of the contract with the TPA?   Would you expect the TPA to begin placing students for the 2010-2011 academic year?


The TPA should have an initial contract which coincides with the length of time of the students’ scholarships. In this instance, a three-year contract is contemplated. If GS/OAS finds the TPA’s services acceptable and useful, it may award additional contracts of the same or similar periods of performance. As is customary, the GS/OAS would include a clause in the contract which indicates that the continuation of the contract is contingent on the availability of funds. Yes, the TPA would begin placing students for the 2010-11 academic cycle.
2)
How many students per year on average could we expect for Canada?  There are obvious economies of scale when it comes to the administration of such scholarships. 
Between 20-30 students.
3)
Can you please confirm that the $30,000 includes the TPA’s administration fee for the placement and administration of each scholarship? 
The fees charged by the TPA for placement of each student do not count towards the $30,000 cap on the scholarship award. However, the fees that the TPA charges as ongoing administration fees do count towards the $30,000 cap per student. Thus, higher administration fees reduce the amount available in scholarships for each student. 

`
In that sense, the bidder’s Price Proposal shall be presented considering the following components:

a) Placement Fee:  Per student.
b) Administration Fee: Per student, per month.
4)
In the past, have there been more undergraduate or graduate students awarded scholarships?  What might we expect? 
In the past and in the future, we expect to have more graduate than undergraduate students.

5)
What fields of study are eligible for scholarships?  

Please see Attachment 3, Strategic Plan for Partnership for Development 2006-2010, which contains the broad fields of study.

6)
Are there instances where you might not grant the full $30,000?  Are there any instances where you might grant more especially for expensive programs (e.g. MBA programs, Medicine etc. are expensive).  

Yes, there are instances where the OAS does not grant the full $30,000. The OAS academic scholarship program only pays actual costs up to $30,000.  No, the OAS Manual for Scholarships and Training Programs approved by the governing bodies establishes a maximum limit of $30,000 on the total cost per scholarship per academic year.

7)
The RFP states that the DHD will determine the students’ subsistence allowances, book allowance rates etc. Can you tell us what those are now? 
The OAS scholarship program provides a yearly book allowance of $300 for on-site studies and $1,000 for on-line studies. The subsistence rates for each country are attached to this e-mail.  The subsistence allowance under the OAS academic scholarship program is not intended to completely cover all expenses a scholarship recipient may incur.

8)
Is it possible that some students will already be registered at a university in an OAS country and will be coming to Canada for a one year study experience in their third or fourth year?  Do we need to be concerned then about credit transferability issues, etc? 

In our experience, students who transfer from one university to another or who take up study for one year as part of a two year Masters program have already gained their own entry into the university.  Thus, the credit transfer is not normally a concern for the TPA. 

9)
If the duration of the student’s academic year is only 8 months and not 12 months what are the implications for the TPA in terms of administration costs? 
OAS scholarships are granted for 2 academic years or up to 24 months. TPA administration charges are paid based on the actual duration of the program of study.

10)
Where might we find the list of Canadian universities with which the OAS has agreements? 
Please go to www.educoas.org, to OAS Scholarships – Academic Studies, Consortium of Universities.

11)
In reference to Appendix 1, Section 3.1.2, must the TPA apply to either three universities on behalf of the applicant or three programs within the applicant university?  

The TPA, working with the awardee, would apply to up to 3 universities or 3 programs or a combination of both, but not more than three in total.

12)
Section 3.3. states that the TPA will receive the full Placement fee in the case where the awardees decline placement.  Will the TPA still receive the full Placement fee if after applying on behalf of the student there are no universities that will accept the student? What if the student then fails his/her academic year? 
The TPA will receive the full Placement fee if the awardee declines placement and the TPA secured the placement. The TPA will receive the full Placement fee if there are no universities that will accept the student, and the TPA provides in writing the rejections from the universities and supporting documentation which show that the TPA made every effort to place the student. If we understand the question correctly, the bidder is asking if the awardee becomes a scholarship recipient, begins his studies and subsequently fails, will the TPA have to return the placement fee. The answer is “no”. The TPA will not have to return the placement fee. However, OAS would certainly want the TPA who is monitoring academic progress, to be tracking the performance of the student and to give sufficient warning if the student were in danger of failing.
13)
Is there an estimated budget for our institution to work from, while preparing the budget?

The OAS Scholarship Program expects to keep between 350 and 450 active students enrolled in their academic program at any given time. Nevertheless, the OAS Scholarship Program depends upon a budget approved yearly by the Member States; therefore, the number of grantees is subject to vary based on budget availability.

14) 
What is the estimated number of students per year for placement?

The GS/OAS might request placement for a number of students that will fluctuate between 5 and 20 per academic cycle.  Placements will be mainly for the United States and Canada.

15) 
What is the maximum/minimum length of the proposal?

As per Section 6.1.4 of the Request for Proposals - The Price Proposals must be valid for at least ninety (90) calendar days as of the closing date of this RFP.  This must be stated on the Proposal.

16)
Should estimates for tuition, maintenance and other related expenses for awardees be reflected in our budget? 
No; the GS/OAS will assign an estimated budget to cover benefits granted to each student. The TPA will serve as conduit to disburse these benefits; the assigned budget will serve as guide to the TPA.
17)
Is there a specific format and set of guidelines that the technical proposal should follow, in addition to responding to the Terms of Reference? Is there a page limit? 
There is no page limit. The only guidelines are the Terms of Reference. And the requirements indicated in Section 6. Proposal Submission, of the Request for Proposals.

18)
Can you clarify point 8 on Attachment 4 that the placement cycle per academic cycle averages 5? This seems low. 
Since 2007, the OAS has increasingly taken on the direct placement of OAS academic scholarship recipients. Thus, the OAS estimates that there could be between 5 and 20 students assigned for placement to the TPA per academic cycle.  The number of placements by the TPA could increase over time should the TPA be able to demonstrate a high probability of placing OAS selected students in reputable US/Canada schools at a substantial tuition reduction.
19)
What criteria should be used as a basis for proposing additional institutions in member states to the consortium? 

There are a number of criteria that the OAS uses in soliciting a partnership with a higher education institution, many of which are considered standard when universities wish to e certified as accredited institutions. The Manual of Procedures for the OAS Academic Scholarships program indicates in Article 11.5. “In order to gradually attain the distribution between the scholarships’ types set forth in Article 11.2, the General Secretariat shall strengthen linkages with as many academically reputable institutions as possible, with a view to expanding and diversifying the Consortium to include institutions throughout the Hemisphere”. 
20)
How important is the balance of students in the different regions within Latin America?  We understand there is a 40% per country cap on total placements, but are you looking to diversify the existing disbursement of grantees around the region?  Do you have a vision for regional/country breakdowns? 
Our only mandate at present is that no member country may receive in its universities more than 40% of the scholarship recipients for graduate studies. 
21)
Are we to be involved with any aspect of promotion of the program or selection of grantees?  
The TPA will be asked to promote the program via their website and by any other means at its disposal during the OAS Scholarship Selection Cycle.  The TPA is not expected to be involved in the selection process. 
22)
Is the TPA required to develop a program website?  Are there specific requirements for the site? 
Any technological tool at the disposal of the TPA to enhance their effectiveness in the administration of the OAS Scholarship Program will be looked upon favorably in the review of the bids. 
23)
Has an evaluation of the program been conducted and if so, can this be shared? 
No, there has not been any revaluation of the program conducted during the past several years. 

24)
In Appendix I Terms of Reference in Section 4 TPA Specifications, the final sentence indicates “Bidder must prove the compliance of the above-mentioned requirements by including in their proposals the supporting documentation.”  Could you please elaborate what kind of documentation should be provided to prove experience in administering scholarship programs and oral and written language skills?

Examples of supporting documentation might include: a list of institutions (clients) for whom the bidder has provided services within the past 5 years, the nature of the services, where the services took place, and contact information. For language skills, the bidder might include the number of its staff and the languages they command and their curriculum vitas. (This assumes that if the bidder won the contract, these individuals would, in fact, be put to work on the administration of the OAS scholarship program.) 
25)
In Attachment 4, item number 8 indicates “Placement numbers – On average, 5 per academic cycle.“  Could you please explain if this mean the TPA would be asked to place only 5 of the estimated 350-450 students, or does this mean that the TPA would apply to 5 universities on behalf of an unspecified number of students?. 
Since 2007, the OAS has increasingly taken on the direct placement of OAS academic scholarship recipients. Thus, the OAS estimates that there could be between 5 and 20 students assigned for placement to the TPA per academic cycle. The number of placements by the TPA could increase over time should the TPA be able to demonstrate a high probability of placing OAS selected students in reputable US/Canada schools at a substantial tuition reduction.  
